
City Council Agenda 
 
APRIL 27, 2021 
6:00 p.m. 
City of Turlock Yosemite Room 
156 S. Broadway, Turlock, California 
 
 

NOTICE: THIS MEETING WILL BE HELD IN ACCORDANCE WITH EXECUTIVE ORDER  
N-29-20, ISSUED BY CALIFORNIA GOVERNOR GAVIN NEWSOM ON MARCH 17, 2020, THE 

RALPH M. BROWN ACT (CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54950, ET SEQ.), AND 
THE FEDERAL AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT. 

 

THIS MEETING WILL BE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC.  SEATING CAPACITY WILL BE LIMITED TO 
THE FIRST 14 PEOPLE, ON A FIRST COME FIRST SERVE BASIS.  COMPLIANCE WITH ALL 

HEALTH & SAFETY GUIDELINES INCLUDING COVID-19 SCREENING, TEMPERATURE CHECKS, 
FACE COVERINGS, AND PHYSICAL DISTANCING MEASURES WILL BE REQUIRED FOR IN-

PERSON ATTENDANCE.  PLEASE PLAN TO ARRIVE APPROXIMATELY 15 MINUTES PRIOR TO 
THE SCHEDULED MEETING START TIME TO ALLOW FOR SCREENING PROCESSES.  FOR 

MORE INFORMATION, PLEASE VISIT THE CITY OF TURLOCK WEBSITE AT 
WWW.CITYOFTURLOCK.ORG. 

 

THIS MEETING WILL BE STREAMED ON THE CITY OF TURLOCK WEBSITE AT 
WWW.CITYOFTURLOCK.ORG AND BROADCASTED ON SPECTRUM CHANNEL 2.  MEMBERS 
OF THE PUBLIC MAY ALSO PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING VIA THE FOLLOWING METHODS: 

 

JOIN BY CLICKING ON THE MEETING LINK: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84924629186 
 

OR 
 

JOIN BY ACCESSING THE ZOOM WEBSITE: https://zoom.us/join 
WEBINAR ID: 849 2462 9186 

 

OR 
 

JOIN BY TELEPHONE: 669-900-6833 
WEBINAR ID: 849 2462 9186 

 

 
Mayor 

Amy Bublak 
 Acting City Manager 
 Council Members Gary R. Hampton 
Nicole Larson Rebecka Monez City Clerk 
Andrew Nosrati Pam Franco  Jennifer Land 
     Vice Mayor  Interim City Attorney 
 George A. Petrulakis 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

NOTICE REGARDING NON-ENGLISH SPEAKERS:  The Turlock City Council meetings are conducted in English and translation to 
other languages is not provided.  Please make arrangements for an interpreter if necessary. 
 
EQUAL ACCESS POLICY:  If you have a disability which affects your access to public facilities or services, please contact the City 
Clerk’s Office at (209) 668-5540.  The City is committed to taking all reasonable measures to provide access to its facilities and 
services.  Please allow sufficient time for the City to process and respond to your request. 
 
NOTICE:  Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54954.3, any member of the public may directly address the City Council 
on any item appearing on the agenda, including Consent Calendar and Public Hearing items, before or during the City Council’s 
consideration of the item. 
 
AGENDA PACKETS:  Prior to the City Council meeting, a complete Agenda Packet is available for review on the City’s website at 
www.cityofturlock.org and in the City Clerk’s Office at 156 S. Broadway, Suite 230, Turlock, during normal business hours.  Materials 
related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Council after distribution of the Agenda Packet are also available for public 
inspection in the City Clerk’s Office.  Such documents may be available on the City’s website subject to staff’s ability to post the 
documents before the meeting. 



Council Agenda 
4/27/21 
Page 2 

 

 

0. A. CALL TO ORDER 
 

B. SALUTE TO THE FLAG 
 

C. ROLL CALL 
 

D. DECLARATION OF CONFLICTS 
 
 
1. CLOSED SESSION: 
 

The Closed Session item(s) for this meeting have been agendized and will be heard toward the 
latter part of the meeting. 

 
 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA AS POSTED OR AMENDED 

This is the time for the City Council to remove items from the agenda or to change the order of the agenda.  Matters 
may be taken up out of order of the established agenda by a four-fifths vote of the City Council. 

 
 
3. PROCLAMATIONS, RECOGNITIONS, APPOINTMENTS, ANNOUNCEMENTS,  

PRESENTATIONS, AND BRIEFINGS: 
 

A. Proclamation:  Arbor Day, April 2021 
B. Appointment:  West Turlock Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Agency, Primary 

Member 
C. Briefing:  COVID-19 Update, presented by Interim Fire Chief Gary Carlson 

 
 
4. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC WISHING TO ADDRESS THE CITY COUNCIL WILL BE GIVEN THE 
SAME TIME ALLOTMENT FOR COMMENTS AS NORMALLY ALLOWED FOR MEETINGS 
SUBJECT TO THE PROVISIONS OF EXECUTIVE ORDER N-29-20. 

 
Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54954.3(a), this is the time set aside for members of the public to 
directly address the City Council on any item of interest to the public that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the 
City Council and to address the Council on any item on tonight’s agenda, including Consent Calendar items.  If you 
wish to speak regarding an item on the agenda, you may be asked to defer your remarks until the Council addresses 
the matter. 

 
Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54954.2(a)(3), no action or discussion may be undertaken on any 
item not appearing on the posted agenda, except that the City Council, or its staff, may briefly respond to comments 
or questions from members of the public, provide a reference to staff or other resources for factual information, or 
direct staff to place the issue on a future agenda. 

 
 
5. MOTION WAIVING READING OF ALL ORDINANCES ON THE AGENDA, EXCEPT BY 

TITLE:  None 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Council Agenda 
4/27/21 
Page 3 

 

 

6. CONSENT CALENDAR: 
 Information concerning the consent items listed hereinbelow has been forwarded to each Councilmember prior to this 

meeting for study.  Unless the Mayor, a Councilmember or member of the audience has questions concerning the 
Consent Calendar, the items are approved at one time by the Council.  The action taken by the Council in approving 
the consent items is set forth in the explanation of the individual items. 

 
A. Resolution:  Accepting Weekly Demands of 4/1/21 in the amount of $4,173,605.84; 

Weekly Demands of 4/8/21 in the amount of $847,456.47; Weekly Demands of 4/15/21 
in the amount of $1,257,582.10 

B. Motion:  Accepting Minutes of the Regular Meeting of February 23, 2021; Minutes of 
Special Meeting of March 9, 2021 

C. 1.  Motion:  Approving Contract Change Order No. 3 (Final) in the decreased amount of 
$112,167.15 (Non-General Fund – Fund 215) for City Project No. 15-44 “Rehabilitation 
of Hawkeye Avenue and Lander Avenue” bringing the contract total to $1,706,888.48 

 2.  Motion:  Accepting improvements for City Project No. 15-44 “Rehabilitation of 
Hawkeye Avenue and Lander Avenue” and authorizing the City Engineer to file a Notice 
of Completion 

D. Motion:  Approving the advertisement of construction bids for City Project No. 20-013 
“Water and Sewer Main Extensions – N. Golden State Blvd” 

E. Resolution:  Adopting a Resolution of vacation, pursuant to Division 9, Part 3, Chapters 
2 and 4 of the Streets and Highways Code, to summarily vacate those certain portions of 
existing public utility easements over portions of 149 W. Canal Drive (APN: 042-009-
039) & 199 W. Canal Drive (APN: 042-009-038) 

F. Resolution:  Authorizing the City Manager to execute Lien Agreements in a form 
approved by the City Attorney for the deferred payment of development impact fees 

G. Resolution:  Accepting the 2020 General Plan Annual Report pursuant to California 
Government Code section 65400(a)(2) to be submitted to the Governor’s Office of 
Planning and Research and the California Department of Housing and Community 
Development 

H. Motion:  Authorizing the sole source repairs to out of repair sidewalks in various 
locations throughout the City and approving an Agreement with Precision Emprise, LLC., 
Dba Precision Concrete Cutting of Sacramento, for sidewalk trip hazard removal projects 
for the City of Turlock, for a period of thirty-six (36) months, in an annual amount not to 
exceed $60,000 and a total amount not to exceed $360,000 if all renewal periods are 
exercised, without compliance to the formal bid procedure in accordance to Turlock 
Municipal Code Section 2-7-08(b)(2) 

I. Motion:  Approving Amendment No. 1 to the Joint and Reciprocal Agreement with 
Turlock Unified School District (TUSD), for use of facilities, to update the language 
following California Department of Public Health guidelines regarding COVID-19 

J. 1.  Resolution:  Approving modifications to the job descriptions for the positions of 
Information Technology Technician, Information Technology Analyst I/II, Information 
Technology Analyst - Senior, Information Technology Coordinator, and Information 
Technology Manager, effective April 27, 2021 

 2.  Resolution:  Approving the reclassification of two (2) Senior Information Technology 
Analysts to Information Technology Coordinators, effective May 1, 2021 

K. Motion:  Authorizing the release of unclaimed checks pursuant to California Government 
Code section 50055 to the City of Turlock 

 
 
7. FINAL READINGS:  None 
 
 
8. PUBLIC HEARINGS:  None 
 



Council Agenda 
4/27/21 
Page 4 

 

 

9. ACTION ITEMS: 
 

A. Request to approve Contract Change Order No. 1 (Final) in the amount of $34,301.41 
(Non-General Fund – Fund 246) for City Project No. 20-004 "2020 Slurry Seals" bringing 
the contract total to $1,109,301.41 AND accept improvements for City Project No. 20-
004 "2020 Slurry Seals" and authorizing the City Engineer to file a Notice of Completion 
AND appropriate $525,000 to account number 246-60-600.43700 “Slurry Seals” to be 
funded from Fund 246 “Landscape Assessment District Maintenance” unassigned 
reserves to provide necessary funding for City Project No. 20-004 "2020 Slurry Seals"  
(Bray) 

 
Recommended Action: 
Motion:  Approving Contract Change Order No. 1 (Final) in the amount of $34,301.41 
(Non-General Fund – Fund 246) for City Project No. 20-004 "2020 Slurry Seals" bringing 
the contract total to $1,109,301.41 

 
Motion:  Accepting improvements for City Project No. 20-004 "2020 Slurry Seals" and 
authorizing the City Engineer to file a Notice of Completion 

 
Resolution:  Appropriating $525,000 to account number 246-60-600.43700 “Slurry 
Seals” to be funded from Fund 246 “Landscape Assessment District Maintenance” 
unassigned reserves to provide necessary funding for City Project No. 20-004 "2020 
Slurry Seals" 

 
B. Request to authorize the use of CARES Act funds, if necessary, for the purpose of 

offsetting aquatics program expenses in excess of revenue generated by swim lessons, 
as a result of the COVID-19 Public Health Emergency by appropriating $34,000 from 
account number 110-10-189.48001_325 “Transfer Out To Respond To COVID-19 
Pandemic” to account number 110-61-626-102.38001_325 “Transfer In From CARES 
Act Funds”  (Van Guilder) 

 
Recommended Action: 
Resolution:  Authorizing the use of CARES Act funds, if necessary, for the purpose of 
offsetting aquatics program expenses in excess of revenue generated by swim lessons, 
as a result of the COVID-19 Public Health Emergency by appropriating $34,000 from 
account number 110-10-189.48001_325 “Transfer Out To Respond To COVID-19 
Pandemic” to account number 110-61-626-102.38001_325 “Transfer In From CARES 
Act Funds” 

 
C. Request to approve an Agreement with Community Housing and Shelter Services 

(CHSS), a non-profit organization, to administer a rent, mortgage, and utility assistance 
program to eligible households as prescribed in Attachment A and authorize the City 
Manager to execute all necessary documents  (Pitt) 

 
Recommended Action: 
Motion:  Approving an Agreement with Community Housing and Shelter Services 
(CHSS), a non-profit organization, to administer a rent, mortgage, and utility assistance 
program to eligible households as prescribed in Attachment A and authorizing the City 
Manager to execute all necessary documents. 

 
 
 
 



Council Agenda 
4/27/21 
Page 5 

 

 

D. Request to approve the reorganization of the Administrative Services Department and 
establishing the Finance Department, effective July 1, 2021 AND approve modifications 
to the job description for the position of Administrative Services Director, effective July 1, 
2021 AND approve a new job description for the position of Finance Director, effective 
July 1, 2021 AND authorize the hiring of one (1) Administrative Services Director and 
one (1) Finance Director through an in-house recruitment of full-time, part-time, and 
volunteer/intern staff (with no priority given), and an outside recruitment if needed; 
authorize the Acting City Manager to engage in a contract with a professional recruiting 
firm for the hiring of an Administrative Services Director and a Finance Director in an 
amount not to exceed $40,000; and appropriate $40,000 from Fund 110 “General Fund” 
unassigned reserves to account number 110-10-109.43060_039 “Executive 
Recruitments” in FY 20-21  (Hampton/Eddy/Silva) 

 
Recommended Action: 
Resolution:  Approving the reorganization of the Administrative Services Department and 
establishing the Finance Department, effective July 1, 2021 

 
Resolution:  Approving modifications to the job description for the position of 
Administrative Services Director, effective July 1, 2021 

 
Resolution:  Approving a new job description for the position of Finance Director, 
effective July 1, 2021 

 
Resolution:  Authorizing the hiring of one (1) Administrative Services Director and one 
(1) Finance Director through an in-house recruitment of full-time, part-time, and 
volunteer/intern staff (with no priority given), and an outside recruitment if needed; 
authorizing the Acting City Manager to engage in a contract with a professional recruiting 
firm for the hiring of an Administrative Services Director and a Finance Director in an 
amount not to exceed $40,000; and appropriating $40,000 from Fund 110 “General 
Fund” unassigned reserves to account number 110-10-109.43060_039 “Executive 
Recruitments” in FY 20-21 

 
 
10. CITY MANAGER REPORTS/UPDATES 

City Manager reports/updates are provided for informational purposes only and no action or discussion may be 
undertaken.  The City Manager may direct department heads to provide reports/updates at the City Manager’s 
request. 

 
A. Administrative Services 

1. Monthly Budget Update  (Hampton/Silva) 
2. Measure A Citizens Oversight Committee Update  (Hampton/Land) 
3. City of Turlock Elected and Appointed Officials Handbook Update  (Hampton) 
4. Unsheltered Homeless and Encampments Crisis Update  (Hampton/Williams) 

 
B. Fire Department 

1. Public Safety Briefing  (Carlson) 
 

C. Police Department 
1. Public Safety Briefing  (Williams) 

 
 
11. COUNCIL ITEMS FOR FUTURE CONSIDERATION 

Requests for Council items for future consideration will be scheduled in accordance with Resolution No. 2008-019. 

 



Council Agenda 
4/27/21 
Page 6 

 

 

12. COUNCILMEMBER QUESTIONS, COMMENTS, AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
Councilmembers may ask questions, provide comments, and make brief announcements on notable topics of 
interest.  The Brown Act does not allow discussion or action by the legislative body. 

 
 
13. CLOSED SESSION: 
 

A. Threat to Public Services or Facilities, Cal. Gov’t Code §54957(a) 
“This chapter shall not be construed to prevent the legislative body of a local agency from holding 
closed sessions with the Governor, Attorney General, district attorney, agency counsel, sheriff, or 
chief of police, or their respective deputies, or a security consultant or a security operations 
manager, on matters posing a threat to the security of public buildings, a threat to the security of 
essential public services, including water, drinking water, wastewater treatment, natural gas 
service, and electric service, or a threat to the public’s right of access to public services or public 

facilities.” 
Consultation with:  Interim Fire Chief Gary Carlson and Interim City Attorney George A. 
Petrulakis 

 
B. Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation, Cal. Gov’t Code §54956.9(d)(2) 

“For the purposes of this section, litigation shall be considered pending when any of the following 
circumstances exist...  A point has been reached where, in the opinion of the legislative body of 
the local agency on the advice of its legal counsel, based on existing facts and circumstances, 
there is a significant exposure to litigation against the local agency.” 

Potential Case:  (1 case) 
 

C. Conference with Labor Negotiators, Cal. Gov’t Code §54957.6(a) 
“Notwithstanding any other provision of law, a legislative body of a local agency may hold closed 
sessions with the local agency's designated representatives regarding the salaries, salary 
schedules, or compensation paid in the form of fringe benefits of its represented and 
unrepresented employees, and, for represented employees, any other matter within the statutorily 
provided scope of representation.” 

Agency Designated Representative:  Human Resources Manager Sarah Eddy 
Employee Organization:  Turlock Associated Police Officers 
Employee Organization:  Turlock City Employees Association 
Employee Organization:  Turlock Firefighters Association-Local 2434 
Employee Organization:  Turlock Management Association-Public Safety 
Unrepresented Employees:  Accountant, Sr., Administrative Analyst, Administrative Services 
Director, Assistant to the City Manager for Economic Development/Community Housing, Chief 
Building Official, City Clerk, Community Housing Program Supervisor, Deputy Director 
Development Services/Planning, Development Services Director, Development Services 
Supervisor/City Surveyor, Executive Administrative Assistant/Deputy City Clerk, Executive 
Administrative Assistant/Municipal Services, Executive Administrative Assistant/Public Safety, 
Fire Chief, Human Resources Analyst, Sr., Human Resources Manager, Human Resources 
Technician, Information Technology Manager, Legal Assistant, Municipal Services Deputy 
Director, Municipal Services Director, Office Assistant I, Parks, Recreation and Public Facilities 
Director, Parks, Recreation and Public Facilities Manager, Payroll Coordinator, Police Business 
Unit Supervisor, Police Chief, Principal Civil Engineer, Regulatory Affairs Manager, Transit 
Manager, Utilities Manager, and Water Quality Control Division Manager. 

 
D. Public Employee Discipline/Dismissal/Release, Cal. Gov’t Code §54957(b)(1) 

 
 
14. REPORTS FROM CLOSED SESSION 
 
 
15. ADJOURNMENT 

































































































































































































     
   Development Services 
   City of Turlock 
   March 2020 

 

2020 
 

 
 

General 
Plan 

      Annual Report 
  



Page | 2  
 

INTRODUCTION 

Turlock has had a long history of planning. A general plan for the City 

was first prepared in the early 1950’s and although it was never 

adopted, it served as a starting point for future plans. The General 

Plan prepared in 1969, before general plans acquired their present 

political and legal structure, addressed such contemporary issues as 

urban sprawl and unnecessary destruction of farmland. The next 

General Plan (formally adopted in 1993 and partially updated in 

2002), served the City well, guiding the creation of attractive new 

neighborhoods, parks, and major new retail employment areas. 

 

The most recent effort, completed in September 2012, represents a 

continuation of this planning tradition. The City Council selected 

Alternative 1, the environmentally superior alternative of the 

choices presented to them, while still meeting the low-end-

population projection for the next twenty years for the City of 

Turlock. The current General Plan articulates a vision for Turlock 

that draws on the ideas of the many citizens, business owners, and 

elected officials who participated in the planning process. Designed 

to guide growth and development, the Plan emphasizes the creation 

of attractive new neighborhoods and successful employment 

centers, while preserving the valuable farmland in which the City has 

its roots. 

 

The California Government Code requires that an annual report on 

the status of the General Plan be submitted to the City Council for 

review and approval. The report includes the City’s progress in 

implementing a wide variety of the General Plan goals and policies, 

including the progress in meeting the City’s share of regional housing 

needs. 

 

In order to fulfill the State requirements and inform the City’s elected 

and appointed officials as well as the citizens of Turlock on the 

progress the City has made in implementing goals in the Turlock 

General Plan, City staff has prepared this report to the Turlock City 

Council.  

 

 
  

 

 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 



Page | 3  
 

GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENTS &  

PLANNED DEVELOPMENTS 

 
Requests for a change to the zoning or the General Plan designation of a property occurs when an 

applicant wants to develop a property with a use not allowed under the existing designation, 

such as development of apartments on property designated for single-family homes or 

residential uses rather than commercial uses.  Or when a project requests a deviation from a 

Municipal Code Standard. These applications are legislative actions and are ultimately decided 

on by the City Council. In addition, the request may require a more detailed environmental 

analysis to determine how the proposal’s impacts differ from those evaluated in the General 

Plan. 

 

 

GENERAL PLAN CONFORMITY FINDINGS 

 
General Plan Conformity findings are required in accordance with Government Code 

§65402(a). General Plan Conformity Findings in 2020: 

 

PROJECT LOCATION PROJECT NAME DESCRIPTION 

Abandonment of Isaac 

Way 
654 Isaac Way 

General Plan 

Conformity for 

Public Street 

Abandonment of 

Isaac Way and  

the Public Utility 

Easement. 

 

The abandonment of Isaac 

Way and approximately 206 

feet of the Public Utilities 

Easement, along the west 

side of Isaac Way, 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PLANNED DEVELOPMENTS 
 

PROJECT LOCATION PROJECT NAME DESCRIPTION 

2020 PLANNING DIVISION PROJECTS 



Page | 4  
 

Planned Development 

279 

1137,1201, & 1233 

Fifth St 
Florsheim Homes 

Subdivide three parcels 

totaling 15.66 acres into 

178 single family residential 

lots. 

 

VARIANCES 

 

Variances grant property owner’s relief from development standards to the zoning 

regulations of this Code when, because of a particular physical or topographical condition 

of the property, compliance would result in undue hardship on the owner. 

 
PROJECT LOCATION PROJECT NAME DESCRIPTION 

Variance 20-01 2707 E Tuolumne Rd Fairbanks Ranch 

Requested a variance from 

the 20-foot corner side yard 

setback for 9 lots in the 

Fairbanks Ranch 

Subdivision. 

 

SUBDIVISION MAPS 

 
Subdivisions typically allow for the creation of new lots within existing parcels for 

residential sale, lease, or finance and therefore must ultimately be approved by the Planning 

Commission.  
 

PROJECT LOCATION PROJECT NAME DESCRIPTION 

VTSM 20-01 4600 Colorado Ave VVH Consulting 

Subdivide .099 acres lot into 

six single-family residential 

lots 

VTSM 20-02 
1137,1201, & 1233 Fifth 

St 
Florsheim Homes 

Subdivide three parcels 

totaling 15.66 acres into 

178 single family residential 

lots. 

MINOR DISRETIONARY PERMITS (MDP) 
Minor Discretionary Permits are reviewed and approved by staff.  Staff reviews these projects for 

compliance with the adopted policies, codes, and standards of the City of Turlock. MDPs are 

required when there is a change in use of an existing structure, an expansion of an existing 

structure, when a new project is to be built. 



Page | 5  
 

PROJECT LOCATION PROJECT NAME PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

MDP 20-01 812 Fransil Ln  
Elum Industrial 

Campus 

Parcel 9.6-acre property for 

the development of an 

Industrial-Business Park. 

MDP 20-02 528 Dianne Dr Turlock Self Storage 
Develop a self-storage facility 

on 3.28-acre parcel. 

MDP 20-03 3800 Ruble Rd Gonzalez Pallets 

Develop a 1-acre for 

manufacturing, repairing and 

storing of wood pallets.  

MDP 20-04 2700 Fulkerth Rd Magallon Const 
Construction of new gas 

station with convenience store. 

MDP 20-05 2325 Industrial Rowe Sabino Urrutia 
Develop a truck yard for 

parking of large semi-trucks 

MDP 20-06 301 W Main St Sunny Vraitch Construct a new triplex. 

MDP 20-07 1412 S First St 
Mulberry Mobile 

Home Park 

Permit 4 additional RV parking 

spaces 

MDP 20-08 673 W Main St Susana Avalos 
Allow non-conforming use of 

building as a beauty salon 

MDP 20-09 2621 Adrian St Mark Walker 

Minor Exception of setback 

requirement for an addition to 

the home. 

MDP 20-10 775 N Golden State  MCG Architecture 
Remodel existing building for a 

drive-through restaurant 

MDP 20-11 199 W Canal Dr API Architecture New drive-through restaurant 

MDP 20-12 214 & 216 W Main St  Ismael Covarrubias 
Outdoor seating for future 

restaurant 

MDP 20-13 
693 & 699 N Golden 

State  
MCG Architecture 

Construction of a new fast food 

restaurant with drive-through 

MDP 20-14 2310 N Walnut Rd Thorsen’s-Norquist 
Add 2,500 sq. ft warehouse to 

existing building. 

MDP 20-15 
3330 Liberty Square 

Pkwy 
Alpha Poultry New warehouse building. 

MDP 20-16 901 E Monte Vista Ave Monte Vista Vet 
Construct a metal parking 

shade canopy 

MDP 15-11 Time Ext 1015 & 1043 E Main St Guy Similie 

One year extension for a 

previously approved assisted 

living and memory care 

facility. 

MDP 18-14 Amendment 2120 W Main St RJ Singh 

Amend redesign of drive 

through car wash, fueling 

station and repair 

 

MDP 20-17 705 N Tully Rd Joe Gomes & Sons 
Construct a new above ground 

fuel tank storage 

MDP 20-18 1143 Park St HMR Architecture Construct eight dwelling units 



Page | 6  
 

  

CONDITIONAL USE PERMITS (CUP) 
The purpose of a Conditional use Permit is to evaluate the site features, operating characteristics 

and design of a proposed use to ensure compatibility with other uses in the general area. The 

Planning Commission determines if a proposed CUP shall be granted. 
 
 

 

 

 

 

TEMPORARY USE OF LAND PERMITS (TULP) 
Generally, a “temporary use of land” is described as an activity on a property when that use is 

intended to take place only for a limited or intermittent period of time with no intent to become 

permanent. 

MDP 19-08 Amend 1950 Olympic Dr Anderson-Litfin 

Amend previous site plan from 

two warehouses to one 

warehouse 

MDP 20-19 694 Ninth St Eric Yonan 
Expand an existing residence 

in a nonconforming use. 

MDP 11-07 Time Ext 1300 N Washington Rd Blue Diamond 

Time extension for the 

construction of a previously 

approved food processing 

facility 

MDP 19-06 

Amend 
2500 Fulkerth Rd Turlock One Stop 

Remove a drive-through 

restaurant previously 

approved  

MDP 20-20 812 Fransil Ln 
Seefried 

Development 

Construction of a warehouse 

and order fulfillment center. 

MDP 20-21 2450 Fulkerth Rd Golden Highway 
Develop a 14,000 sq. ft. 

medical building 

MDP 20-22 1504 Colorado Ave Rich Murdoch 
Develop a 10,125 sq. ft. 

medical building 

MDP 20-23 2925 W Main St Darrin Packnit 
Develop an open air RV & boat 

storage facility 

MDP 20-24 439 Wayside Dr Jose Perez Build a new duplex 

MDP 20-25 2400 Maryann Dr M & C Investments 
Build a 16,000 sq. ft. 

warehouse building 

MDP 20-26 1037 S Kilroy Rd Tarjinder Shergill 
Develop 10 acre parcel for 

semi-truck and trailer parking 

PROJECT LOCATION 
PROJECT 

NAME 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

CUP 06-04 Time 

Ext 
1391 Fifth St Sikh Temple 

One year time ext. for construction of 

new 21,000 sq. ft building 

CUP 19-05 

Amendment 

2701 & 2801 N 

Tegner Rd 
Costco 

Develop 193 additional on-site parking 

spaces 

CUP 85-26 

Amendment 
501 N Golden State 

Turlock Town 

Center 

Amend the sign program for Turlock 

Town Center 

CUP 20-01 
3401 W Monte 

Vista 
NHC Turlock Operate a cannabis retail dispensary 

CUP 20-02 600 D Street JDI Farms 

Operate a cannabis cultivation, 

manufacturing and distribution 

business 



Page | 7  
 

Common examples of temporary uses of land include outdoor carnivals, outdoor sales events, 

temporary parking lots, and similar temporary or special promotions. 
 

 
 

Also, worth noting, City staff held 77 predevelopment meetings in 2020 in comparison to the 89 

predevelopment meetings in 2019. These meetings are offered free of charge to anyone wishing 

to schedule a meeting with staff to discuss a development proposal. At these meetings, 

development standards, site and building design, potential parking and traffic circulation issues, 

infrastructure requirements, public safety concerns/standards, fees, and any other information 

related to the particular project are discussed. Having this discussion early on in the development 

process has proven to be very beneficial to everyone involved. 

 

PROJECT LOCATION APPLICANT PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

TULP 20-01 893 Lander Ave 
Pixie’s Craft 

Faire 
Craft fair at 893 Lander Ave 

TULP 20-02 3051 Geer Rd ACE Hardware Grand Opening promotional event 



Page | 8  
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

4

6

7

3

12

6

14

12

7

8

7

3

6

1

4

8

9

7

12

5

10

9

4

2

2019 & 2020 COMPARISON

2019 2020

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC 

6 1 4 8 9 7 12 5 10 9 4 2 

CHAPTER & 

ACTION 

RESPONSIBLE 

DEPARTMENT 
IMPLEMNTATION STATUS 

CHAPTER 2: LAND USE AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

 Downtown: 



Page | 9  
 

 

  
2.4-b: Update the 

Downtown 

Overlay District 

and Design 

Guidelines. 

Planning 

Staff took an item to Council in 

2015 and council determined 

there was no General Fund money 

to fund the update.  This item will 

be brought back to Council at a 

future date to determine if any 

funding is available.  Staff will 

continue to look for grant funding 

to update the plan. 

2.4-c: Continue 

Downtown 

Property-Based 

Improvement 

District. 

Economic 

Development 

The PBID was renewed by the 

Downtown Property Owners 

Association on July 9, 2013 for a 

period of ten years. 

2.4-d: Work with 

property owners 

to preserve the 

historic character 

of Downtown 

Turlock. 

Planning 

The city applied for a Strategic 

Growth Council Sustainable 

Communities Planning Grant to 

comprehensively update the 

Downtown Design Guidelines 

using a Pattern Book approach. 

The grant was not approved. The 

Council determined there was no 

General Fund money available to 

fund the plan update. Staff will 

take the item back to Council in 

the future to determine if funding 

is available and will continue to 

look for grant funding 

opportunities. 



Page | 10  
 

CHAPTER 2: LAND USE AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

Retail/Commercial/Mixed Use Areas: 
 

CHAPTER & ACTION 
RESPONSIBLE 

DEPARTMENT 
IMPLEMENTATION STATUS 

CHAPTER & ACTION 
RESPONSIBLE 

DEPARTMENT 
IMPLEMENTATION STATUS 

CHAPTER 2: LAND USE AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

 Residential Areas: 

2.5-d: Zoning ordinance 

revisions to match General 

Plan. 

Planning 

The City Council approved an annual 

Omnibus Zoning Ordinance 

Amendment in April 2015. Minor 

technical amendments to ensure 

consistency with the new General Plan 

were approved in August 2016 and 

February 2017.  The Zoning Ordinance 

and General Plan are now consistent, if 

future updates are made to the General 

Plan that require Zoning Ordinance 

Amendments staff will bring that 

forward. 

2.5-i: Create incentives to 

increase residential 

development in Downtown 

and infill sites. 

Building 

The updated Downtown Zoning 

Regulations adopted in April 2015 

provide reduced permitting 

requirements for high rise 

residential development. 

2.5-l: Establish a graduated 

density ordinance in 

neighborhoods with narrow 

lots (by today’s standards) 

generally located in Southwest. 

Planning 

Preliminary work has been 

completed on this item. This work is 

part of the SB 2 Planning grant and 

staff plans to begin work on this item 

in 2021. 

2.5-m: Establish an overlay 

district(s) for areas adjacent to 

Downtown to preserve the 

historic quality and 

cohesiveness of these post 

WWII neighborhoods. 

Planning 

Preliminary work has been 

completed on this item.  This work is 

part of the SB 2 Planning grant and 

staff plans to begin work on this item 

in 2021. 



Page | 11  
 

 

2.6-e: Discount Superstore 

Demand Analysis.  

 

 Economic Development 

Household growth has not yet 

achieved the milestone established 

in the General Plan for initiating this 

analysis. 

2.6-h: Incentives for mixed 

use projects.  
 Economic Development 

No funding options have been 

identified to provide these potential 

incentives. 

CHAPTER 2: LAND USE AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

Industrial Areas: 

2.7-e: Review designated truck 

routes and "industrial streets" 

to accommodate industrial 

traffic and avoid unanticipated 

conflicts 

Engineering 
The City is currently in the process of 

reviewing and modifying maps. 

  

CHAPTER 2: LAND USE AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

Professional Office and Business Park: 

2.8-f: Prioritize Downtown as 

a preferred location for the 

construction of any new City 

administrative offices 

Administration 

A new Public Safety Facilities 

Building was completed in 2013 

and is now serving as the City 

headquarters for Police and Fire 

Services. 

CHAPTER 2: LAND USE AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

The Planning Area and City/County Relationships: 

2.9-k: Update the City’s 

agreement with Stanislaus 

County regarding the 

collection of public facility 

fees and land use policies for 

development adjacent to the 

City. 

Administration 

Stanislaus County adopted an 

amendment to its General Plan to 

give cities greater control over land 

use decisions within one mile of 

their city limits. No additional 

progress has been made on 

updating the public facility free 

program for the county. 

CHAPTER & ACTION 
RESPONSIBLE 

DEPARTMENT 
IMPLEMENTATION STATUS 



Page | 12  
 

CHAPTER 2: LAND USE AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

Economic Development 

2.11-j: Complete a citywide 

economic development 

strategic plan every five 

years focusing on industry 

targeting, job creation, 

marketing and local business 

support. 

Economic Development 

The City completed a marketing 

research report and is working to 

identify funding to implement the 

recommended strategies. 

2.11-p: Develop and 

implement a marketing 

strategy for the Turlock 

Regional Industrial Park. 

Economic Development 

The City completed a branding 

program to begin the marketing 

process, but has not moved forward 

due to fiscal constraints. 

2.11-s: Re-evaluate building 

permit fees to reflect actual 

costs to the City. 

Building 

This task has been completed. The 

building department fees are 

updated annually effective January 

1st of each year based on the 

August CPI from the previous year.  

The fees for 2020 were updated 

based on the August 2019 CPI. 

2.11-t: Work with Stanislaus 

County and the City of 

Patterson to establish West 

Main Street as an 

expressway connection 

Turlock to I-5. 

Engineering 

The third and final public meeting 

to gather input on the West Main 

alignment was held in 2017 and the 

report was presented to Council.  

Stan COG has nearly completed a 

Feasibility Study evaluating 

potential alternative alignments for 

the expressway connection. 

CHAPTER & ACTION RESPONSIBLE 

DEPARTMENT 

IMPLEMENTATION STATUS 

 

2.11-ab: Work with the 

Stanislaus County Fair Board 

to either expand the County 

Economic Development  

2.9-l:Work with Stanislaus 

County to identify revenue 

tools to underwrite 

necessary improvements to 

encourage incorporation of 

County Islands. 

 

 

Administration 

 

The City continues to work with 

Stanislaus County to identify 

potential funding sources. 

2.9-m: Work with StanCOG 

on regional issues [Regional 

Transportation Plan (RTP) 

Update and Sustainable 

Communities Strategy 

(SCS)]. 

Planning 

The City serves on the RTP and 

Sustainable Communities Strategy 

(SCS) steering committee for 

StanCOG. The RTP and SCA have 

been adopted by StanCOG stating 

that the Turlock General Plan is in 

compliance with the RTP and SCS. 



Page | 13  
 

Fairgrounds at its current 

site or identify a new site 

west of State Route 99 for 

relocation 

 

 

 

2.11-ac: Partner with CSU-

Stanislaus to publicize 

available educational and 

training programs using the 

City's website, through the 

Library, and at City Hall. 

 

 

 

 

 

Human Resources 

The City of Turlock renewed a 

memorandum of understanding 

with California State University 

Stanislaus. This contract has been 

developed to encourage student 

internships and service learning 

experiences. This relationship 

between City of Turlock and 

California State University 

Stanislaus is a mutually beneficial 

relationship.  

 

2.11-ae: Work with the 

Building Division and a 

structural engineer to 

identify less expensive 

seismic retrofit, fire safety, 

and ADA compliance options 

for older buildings.  

Building 

The Building and Safety Division 

has been working with local 

developers to expedite review of 

older buildings.  

2.11-ag: Pursue 

beautification projects. 
Engineering 

 

Beautification projects have been 

completed along North Golden State 

Blvd. from Monte Vista to Tuolumne 

Road. Additional funding is required 

to complete the remainder of the 

beautification projects, including 

the SR 99/Monte Vista interchange 

project. The funding source used to 

construct previous projects is no 

longer available. The City will need 

to identify another source of funds 

to complete all of the identified 

projects. 

CHAPTER & ACTION RESPONSIBLE 

DEPARTMENT 

IMPLEMENTATION STATUS 

2.11-ah: Market Turlock's 

assets. 
Economic Development 

Staff has implemented “no cost” 

measure through email and 

personal outreach to area brokers 

and site selectors. During this 

period, the City has landed two new 

industrial users as well as seen the 

expansion of three of our existing 

base sector employers. The City also 

partners with Opportunity 



Page | 14  
 

Stanislaus on attraction and 

retention of our manufacturing 

sector. 

2.11-ai: Educate users about 

the improved permitting 

process. 

Economic Development 

In light of the City’s fiscal restraints, 

staff has implemented informal “no 

cost” outreach to potential 

businesses to assist in the education 

of the City’s streamlined processes. 

2.11-ak: Implement 

Turlock's Master Way 

Finding Sign Program. 

Economic Development 

A master plan has been adopted. 

Additional funding is required to 

implement the plan. 

CHAPTER 3: NEW GROWTH AREAS AND INFRASTRUCTURE 

Growth Strategy: 

3.1-l: Update the Capital 

Facility Fee (CFF) program 

to reflect the adopted 

General Plan and update 

every 5 years in accordance 

with State Law. 

 

Engineering 

 

The new CFF program has been 

adopted and enacted. 

 

3.1-m: Develop a County 

Islands incorporation 

strategy and include in 

Housing Element Update. 

 

 

Planning 

Through the United States 

Department of Housing and Urban 

Development (HUD) Consolidated 

Plan process, the City and County of 

Stanislaus is developing a joint 

Neighborhood Revitalization 

Strategy Area where HUD funds can 

be used to address some of the 

infrastructure issues and identify 

solutions.  

 

3.1-m: Prepare a master plan 

for the Montana-West Island 

 

Planning 

A funding source is required to 

update the Plan.  At the current 

time, the only available source is 

General Fund. 

CHAPTER & ACTION 
RESPONSIBLE 

DEPARTMENT 
IMPLEMENTATION STATUS 

 

3.1-m: Prepare and update 

financial plans for county 

island and other 

disadvantaged communities. 

 

 

 

 

 

Planning 

The City adopted an amendment to 

its General Plan in April of 2016 to 

meet the requirements of SB 244 

(Disadvantaged Communities).  This 

amendment includes a discussion of 

the financial strategies for county 

islands and other disadvantaged 

communities. 

 

 

 

 

 

The City Council adopted a policy 

along with "Alternative 1" which 

requires that 70% of the building 



Page | 15  
 

3.1-n: Continue prezoning 

and annexation is 

accordance with timing 

Policy 3.1-p. 

Planning permits for available vacant 

properties within the City limits be 

issued prior to initiating annexation 

of a new Master Plan area. 

3.1-o: Update existing 

master and specific plans 

(i.e., Northwest Triangle 

Specific Plan and E. 

Tuolumne Master Plan) 

 

 

Planning 

The East Tuolumne Master Plan was 

updated and adopted in 2016.  The 

Northwest Triangle Specific Plan 

and the Westside Industrial Specific 

Plan update have also been 

adopted.  

3.2-e: Continue to work with 

Merced County, Stan COG 

and MCAG to secure funding 

for the Southeast 

interchange to improve 

circulation and relieve 

congestion on the Lander 

Avenue interchange. 

 

 

Planning 

The Project Study Report was 

adopted by the City of Turlock and 

other partner agencies who funded 

the Report.  The City has included a 

portion of the funding for the 

interchange in the updated CFF 

program of projects. 

CHAPTER 3: NEW GROWTH AREAS AND INFRASTRUCTURE 

Growth Strategy: 

Southeast Master Plan 1: 

Morgan Ranch 

 

Planning 

The Morgan Ranch Master Plan 

was adopted on June 23, 2015. 

 

Southeast Master Plan 2: East 

Avenue North 

 

 

Planning 
Work will not begin until 70% of 

the building permit have been 

issued for Northeast Turlock, E. 

Tuolumne and Morgan Ranch 

master plan areas. 

CHAPTER & ACTION RESPONSIBLE 

DEPARTMENT 

IMPLEMENTATION STATUS 

 

Southeast Master Plan 3: East 

Avenue-Linwood 

 

Planning 

Work will not begin until 70% of 

the building permit have been 

issued for Southeast Master Plan 

2. 

CHAPTER 3: NEW GROWTH AREAS AND INFRASTRUCTURE 

Infrastructure: Potable Water 

3.3-h: Update the City's water 

master plan.  
Development 

Services/Municipal Services 

Scheduled to be updated in FY 

21/22. 



Page | 16  
 

 

 

 

 

 

3.3-j: Pursue surface water 

and other alternative water 

supply sources. 

 

 

 

 

 

Municipal Services 

The City is an active member of 

the Stanislaus Regional Water 

Authority whose purpose is to 

obtain a supply of potable water 

from the Tuolumne River in 

cooperation with the Turlock 

Irrigation District. The SRWA has 

signed a Water Sales Agreement 

with TID and is currently about 

to start construction of the initial 

phase of the project. 

3.3-j: Secure surface water 

sales agreement with the 

Turlock Irrigation District. 

 

Municipal Services 

 

This has been completed 

3.3-k: Supplement the water 

system master plan with rate 

and fee studies to ensure that 

adequate funds are raised. 

 

Municipal Services 

 

Completed January 2014 and 

updated December 2017. 

 

3.3-o: Establish requirements 

for appropriate Best 

Management Practices for 

new development to optimize 

groundwater recharge. 

 

 

Development 

Services/Municipal Services 

 

In June of 2015 Low Impact 

Design standards for all new 

development to minimize storm 

water runoff and encourage 

groundwater recharge were 

developed and adopted. 

CHAPTER 3: NEW GROWTH AREAS AND INFRASTRUCTURE 

Infrastructure: Wastewater Systems 

CHAPTER & ACTION 
RESPONSIBLE 

DEPARTMENT 
IMPLEMENTATION STATUS 

3.3-r: Update the sanitary 

sewer master plan to identify 

future wastewater flows and 

plan for an adequate 

wastewater collection system. 

 

 

Development Services 

 

 

Completed October 2013. 

3.3-s: Update, as needed, the 

wastewater treatment plant 

master plan to comply with 

current and future regulations.  

 

 

Municipal Services 

 

 

Completed July 2014. 



Page | 17  
 

 

 

 

 

3.3-t: Update the recycled 

water master plan, as needed 

 

 

 

 

Municipal Services 

The City is an active member of 

the North Valley Regional 

Recycled Water Program as well 

as the Western Regional 

Recycled Water Coalition.  The 

City's objective is to convey 

recycled water for beneficial use 

in Stanislaus County. 

3.3-u: Supplement the 

wastewater system master 

plan with rate and fee studies 

to ensure that adequate funds 

are raised. 

Municipal Services Scheduled for FY 2020/2021. 

 

CHAPTER & ACTION 
RESPONSIBLE 

DEPARTMENT 

IMPLEMENTATION 

STATUS 

CHAPTER 3: NEW GROWTH AREAS AND INFRASTRUCTURE 

Infrastructure: Stormwater Systems 

 

3.3-w: Update the storm water 

master plan to identify future storm 

water flows and plan for an adequate 

storm water conveyance, storage, 

and disposal system. 

 

 

Development Services / 

Municipal Services 

 

 

Completed October 2013. Adopted 

by City Council with Resolution 

No. 2016-062 on March 22, 2016. 

CHAPTER 3: NEW GROWTH AREAS AND INFRASTRUCTURE 

Infrastructure: Waste Management and Recycling 

3.3-ah: Adopt a construction 

and demolition waste 

recycling ordinance that 

requires large projects to 

divert all Portland cement 

concrete and asphalt 

concrete and at least 50% of 

all remaining debris away 

from landfills 

 

 

 

Development Services 

 

 

Per the Green Building Code, 

Waste Management Plans are 

required to be submitted on 

projects. 

3.3-ak: Study the feasibility 

of adding food waste to the 

City's curbside compost 

pickup program 

 

 

Municipal Services 

Completed. Municipal Code 

updated to include Mandatory 

Organic Recycling for 

commercial and multi-family 

uses as required by the State. 



Page | 18  
 

 

3.3-x: Supplement the storm water 

master plan with fee studies to 

ensure that adequate funds are 

raised. 

 

 

Development Services / 

Municipal Services 

 

Completed September 18, 2015.  

Adopted by Council with 

Resolution No. 2016-074 on April 

12, 2016. 

 

3.3-ad: Require implementation of 

Low Impact Development and Water 

Quality Best Management Practices 

for new development and public 

works projects. 

 

 

 

Development Services 

 

This task has been implemented 

through the City's Municipal 

Separate Storm water and Sewer 

System (MS4) permit. 

   

CHAPTER 4: PARKS, SCHOOLS, AND COMMUNITY FACILITIES 

Parks, Recreation, and Open Space: 

 

 

4.1-f: Update the City's Park, 

Recreation and Open Space Master 

Plan 

 

 

Parks, Recreation, and 

Public Facilities 

 

Due to staffing levels this update is 

on hold. 

 

4.1-h: Acquire and develop 5 new 

neighborhood-serving parks in 

Southeast Master Plans 1 and 2 

 

 

Parks, Recreation, and 

Public Facilities 

 

Limited park maintenance staffing 

levels must be considered before 

adding additional park acreage.  

 

 

4.1-q: Update the park fees 

consistent with the updated Parks, 

Recreation and Open Space Master 

Plan, include non-residential fees 

pursuant to Policy 4.1-r 

 

 

Parks, Recreation, and 

Public Facilities 

 

Due to staffing levels this update is 

on hold. 

 

 

CHAPTER & ACTION 
RESPONSIBLE  

DEPARTMENT 

IMPLEMENTATION 

STATUS 

CHAPTER 4: PARKS, SCHOOLS, AND COMMUNITY FACILITIES 

Community Facilities: 

4.2-c: Within 2 years of 

adopting the new General Plan, 

identify and order priorities for 

new sports and recreation 

facilities, and undertake 

feasibility studies to determine 

 

 

Parks, Recreation, and Public 

Facilities 

 

 

A feasibility study was 

completed in 2017. 



Page | 19  
 

whether and how to proceed 

with development. 

4.2-d: Following a feasibility 

study, confirm support, 

negotiate partnerships and 

amend the Capital Facilities 

Fee to include projects, as 

appropriate 

 

Parks, Recreation, and Public 

Facilities 

Currently conducting an 

analysis of the Columbia Pool 

complex to determine future 

improvements. 

4.2-g: Coordinate with the 

Stanislaus County Library and 

Turlock Unified School District 

to explore a joint use library as 

part of a new middle or high 

school 

 

 

Administration 

  

 

CHAPTER 5: CIRCULATION 

Roadway Network, Standards and Improvements: 

5.2-j: Continue to work with 

Caltrans to achieve timely 

construction or programmed 

freeway and interchange 

improvements. 

Engineering 

The Fulkerth Interchange is 

under construction. The West 

Main Interchange is identified 

in the Measure L Regional 

Project List. 

 

CHAPTER 5: CIRCUALTION 

Regional Cooperation 

5.2-k: Update City Standard 

Specifications and Drawings as 

necessary for regional 

roadways. 

 

Engineering 

The revised standards have 

been approved by the City 

Council.  Working on next 

revision of Standards. 

   

CHAPTER & ACTION 
RESPONSIBLE 

DEPARTMENT 

IMPLEMENTATION 

STATUS 

5.2-l: Work with Stanislaus 

County and other agencies to  

 

implement new interchange on 

State Route 99 near 

Youngstown. 

 

Engineering 

The Project Study Report was 

adopted by the City of Turlock 

and the other partner agencies 

who funded the Report. The 

City has included a portion of 

the funding for the 

interchange in the updated 



Page | 20  
 

 

CHAPTER 5: CIRCUALTION 

Street Network: 

 

5.2-w: Each year, prepare a 5-

year Capital Improvement 

Program to construct/update 

circulation facilities 

 

 

Engineering 

The 5-year Capital 

Improvement Program is 

being developed as part of the 

annual budget process. 

General Plan Conformity will 

be determined by the Planning 

Commission. Ongoing. 

 

CHAPTER 5: CIRCUALTION 

Roadway Operations and Monitoring: 

5.2-ad: Monitor traffic and 

accident information on a 

regular basis to identify 

projects to improve traffic 

safety 

 

Engineering 

 

Ongoing 

 

CHAPTER & ACTION 
RESPONSIBLE  

DEPARTMENT 
IMPLEMENTATION STATUS 

 

CHAPTER 5: CIRCUALTION 

Funding for Improvements: 

5.2-ae: Ensure that new 

development pays its fair 

share of the costs of street 

and other local 

transportation 

improvements by updating 

the Capital Facility Program 

 

 

 

Engineering 

 

 

The Capital Facility Fee Program 

has been updated to ensure that 

development pays its fair share of 

public infrastructure and general 

Capital Facility Fee program of 

projects. 

5.2-p: Work with County to 

expand the current Sphere of 

Influence fee into adjacent 

unincorporated areas. 

 

Development Services 

 The City-County agreement is 

undergoing negotiations. 

5.2-q: Work with Caltrans, 

Stanislaus County and other 

jurisdictions to establish a fair-

share fee program for 

improvements to regional 

routes and state highways 

 

 

Administration 

The City continues to work 

with the County to establish a 

program that would extend 

the City's impact fee program 

to unincorporated areas that 

impact City street and roads. 

5.2-s: Update city standard 

plans and specifications, where 

necessary, to match new 

General Plan standards 

 

Engineering 

The revised standards have 

been adopted by the City 

Council with Resolution No. 

2015-241 on December 8, 

2015.   



Page | 21  
 

and adopting an Area of 

Influence Fee for 

development in the 

unincorporated area that 

impacts City streets and 

roads 

government infrastructure, 

buildings and studies. 

5.2-af: Use citywide traffic 

impact fees and Area of 

Influence fees to provide 

additional funding for 

transportation 

improvements based on 

roadway design in Roadway 

Network Diagram 

 

 

Engineering 

The City continues to work with 

the County to establish a program 

that would extend the City's impact 

fee program to unincorporated 

areas that impact City street and 

roads. 

5.2-am: Establish precise 

alignments based on the 

General Plan circulation 

diagram and the standards 

delineated in Table 5-6. 

 

Engineering 

  

This will be addressed as needs 

arise and time permits. 

5.2-an: Plan line studies 

shall be included in CFF 

costs. Once the plan lines are 

established, new cost 

estimates shall be prepared 

and the CFF updated to 

review the revised and 

finalized costs. 

 

Engineering 

 

The Capital Facility Fee Program, 

updated in 2013, includes plan line 

studies as eligible costs under the 

Transportation fee. 

5.2-ar: Conduct a plan line 

study for the expressway on 

the east side of Turlock that 

will connect Christofferson 

Parkway to State Route 99. 

 

 

Engineering 

  

 

Not started. 

CHAPTER & ACTION 
RESPONSIBLE 

DEPARTMENT 
IMPLEMENTATION STATUS 

 

5.2-ae: Ensure that new 

development pays its fair 

share of the costs of street 

and other local 

transportation 

improvements by updating 

the Capital Facility Program 

and adopting an Area of 

Influence Fee for 

development in the 

unincorporated area that 

impacts City streets and 

roads 

 

 

 

Engineering 

 

The Capital Facility Fee Program 

has been updated to ensure that 

development pays its fair share of 

public infrastructure and general 

government infrastructure, 

buildings and studies. 

 



Page | 22  
 

CHAPTER 5: CIRCUALTION 

Relationship between Modes: 

 

 

 

 

5.2-au: Establish citywide 

standards for bus stop 

locations and bus 

frequencies/headways.  

 

 

 

 

Transit 

The Short-Range Transit Plan 

(SRTP) was adopted in 2016 and 

implemented in Jan. 2017. A SRTP 

revision was conducted in 2019 

and is slated for adoption in Feb. 

2020. Both SRTP documents 

established standards for bus stop 

locations, service routes, 

headways, and spans, as limited 

by requirements in the 

Transportation Development Act. 

 

CHAPTER 5: CIRCUALTION 

Downtown Parking: 

 

5.2-av: Improve Downtown 

parking opportunities as 

demand grows. Downtown 

Parking Facilities shall be 

included in the CFF Update.  

 

 

Engineering 

 

 

Completed 

 

CHAPTER & ACTION 
RESPONSIBLE 

DEPARTMENT 

IMPLEMENTATION 

STATUS 
 

CHAPTER 5: CIRCUALTION 

Complete Streets: 

5.3-k: Prepare a Bicycle Master 

Plan consistent with the 

requirements of the Streets 

and Highway Code to be 

eligible for State funding. 

 

Planning 

 

The Active Transportation Plan 

has been adopted. 

5.3-l: Modify CFF program to 

recognize reduced impact on 

demand for new infrastructure 

in Downtown Pedestrian 

Priority Area. 

 

Engineering 

 

Completed 

 

CHAPTER 5: CIRCUALTION 

Bicycle Improvement Strategy: 

 

5.3-u: Complete a feasibility 

study within 2 years of the 

Priority Infill Bikeway Areas 

identified in Figure 5-3 of the 

General Plan. (May be 

included in the Bike Master 

Plan.) 

 

 

Planning 

 

 

The Active Transportation Plan 

has been adopted. 



Page | 23  
 

 

CHAPTER 5: CIRCUALTION 

Local Transit: 

 

5.4-g: Continue to evaluate the 

potential location of a transit 

center integrated with 

commuter and/or high-speed 

rail, as necessary 

 

 

Planning 

The General Plan identified 

two potential locations for the 

future rail station. Depending 

on funding availability, timing, 

and engineering details, one of 

these locations will be selected 

in the future. 

 

CHAPTER & ACTION 
RESPONSIBLE 

DEPARTMENT 

IMPLEMENTATION 

STATUS 
CHAPTER  6: CITY DESIGN 

Streetscape Design and Pedestrian Orientation: 

 

 

6.3-h: Periodically update the 

Street Tree Master Plan 

 

 

Parks, Recreation and Public 

Facilities 

The Street Tree Master Plan 

has been updated to identify 

types that will reduce damage 

to adjacent public facilities 

while ensuring an attractive 

appearance that provides 

shade for pedestrians and 

vehicles.  

 

CHAPTER  6: CITY DESIGN 

Sustainable Site Planning:  

 

6.4-e: Update Zoning Ordinance 

to enable use of impervious 

surfaces and natural drainage to 

reduce storm water run-off. 

 

 

Planning 

The City adopted guidelines, 

entitled "Post-Construction 

Standards Plan", to implement 

the State requirements for the 

Phase II Municipal Separate 

Storm Water Sewer System 

(MS4) Permit.  

CHAPTER 7:  CONSERVATION   

Update City's CEQA Guidelines 

as necessary to comply with 

State Law 

 

Planning 

The City Council adopted the 

CEQA Guidelines in April 2014. 

Agriculture and Soil Resources:   

 

 

 

 

7.2-f: Participate in the 

development of a countywide 

agricultural mitigation program 

consistent with LAFCO policy 

 

 

 

 

 

Planning 

The City continues to 

investigate alternative methods 

of agricultural preservation and 

mitigation. The Stanislaus 

LAFCO has adopted a policy 

that will apply to all future 

annexations by the City. The 

City will need to select a 

strategy prior to submitting an 



Page | 24  
 

application to LAFCO. Options 

include adopting a mitigation 

fee or establishing an urban 

growth boundary by the vote of 

the citizens. 

CHAPTER 9: NOISE 

   
CHAPTER 10: SAFETY 

Hazardous Materials and Operations:  

10.1-e: Implement Countywide 

Integrated Waste Management 

Plan. 

Municipal Services Ongoing 

CHAPTER 10: SAFETY 

Flooding and Drainage: 

10.3-d: Update City street design 

standards to allow for expanded 

storm water management 

techniques. 

 

Engineering 

 

Ongoing. 

 

CHAPTER & ACTION 
RESPONSIBLE 

DEPARTMENT 

IMPLEMENTATION 

STATUS 

CHAPTER 8: AIR QUALITY AND GREENHOUSE GASES 

Planning for Climate Change: 

 

8.2-f: Within 3 years of General 

Plan adoption, prepare a 

strategic plan for reducing 

greenhouse gas emissions, 

focusing on technically and 

financially feasible 

implementation measures that 

can be taken by the City for 

buildings, fleet and operations.  

 

 

 

 

Development Services 

The City has implemented 

policies and programs to 

reduce greenhouse gas 

emissions. A formal Strategic 

Plan document has not been 

adopted; however, the City is 

committed to improving the 

environment and addressing 

Climate Change through the 

implementation of General Plan 

policies. 

 

8.2-o: Provide incentives for 

greater energy efficiency (at 

least 20 percent greater than 

Title 24) in buildings developed 

in new master plan areas 

 

 

 

Building 

The City Council has adopted a 

new policy requiring industrial 

and commercial buildings over 

50,000 square feet to evaluate 

building improvements that 

reduce greenhouse gases by 

15% more than required under 

the California Green Building 

Code. 



Page | 25  
 

CHAPTER & ACTION 
RESPONSIBLE 

DEPARTMENT 

IMPLEMENTATION 

STATUS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

10.3-b: Cooperate in Multi-

Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation 

Plan. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Fire Services 

The Fire Department 

coordinated and completed the 

Plan for the City of Turlock in 

conjunction with Stanislaus 

County.  The plan was 

completed in 2010 and is good 

through 2015. In 2017 the Office 

of Emergency requested that 

plans now be changed from 

"Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard 

Mitigation Plans" to simply 

"Local Hazard Mitigation Plans" 

(LHMP).  The City of Turlock 

LHMP is currently being 

developed by a committee of 

representatives from the 

different City departments. 

CHAPTER 10: SAFETY 

Fire Services: 

10.4-i: Coordinate facilities 

planning with urban expansion. 

Within 2 years of adoption of the 

General Plan, determine the 

appropriate location for the new 

fire station based on the 

configuration and phasing of 

new development. 

 

 

 

 

Fire Services 

  

At this point the number and 

location of fire stations is 

adequate for the safe mitigation 

of emergencies in Turlock.  The 

possible movement of fire 

station #4 is being evaluated as 

the city expands.  

 

CHAPTER 10: SAFETY 

Public Safety: 

10.4-i: Ensure that the Capital 

Facility Fee Program and 

Community Facility District 

adequately fund police and fire 

capital and operating expenses. 

 

Engineering 

The City evaluated the need for a 

third CFD. The results did not 

support the need for CFD #3. 

This item is ongoing. 

10.4-w: Amend Chapter 8 

(Building Regulations) of the 

TMC to require all new 

construction to be designed to 

amplify emergency radio 

communications within larger 

buildings. 

 

 

Building 

 

 

This provision is included in the 

Fire Code. 

 

























































































































































































































































































































































































































 

 

 

City of Turlock 

Administrative Services Department 

Proposed Organizational Chart 



 

 

City of Turlock 

Finance Department 

Proposed Organizational Chart 

































Finance Department
Updated to 4/22/2021

General Fund Overview FY 2020-2021

Through March 31, 2021

9 months ended 

3/31/2021

Legal / 

Attorney 

Expenses*

2020-2021 

Amended

Budget

2020-2021 

Remaining 

Budget

% of Budget 

Received/

Expended

(Benchmark 75%)

Revenues 28,961,910$           -$                  44,084,995$           15,123,085$           66%

Expenditures *Included in Expenditures

  Administration 4,041,746               400,726       5,890,563               1,848,817               69%

       COVID-19 2,168,385               23,329         2,599,463               431,078                   83%

       UHEC 354                          498,417                   498,063                   0%

  Police 15,655,767             21,895,608             6,239,841               72%

  Fire 7,298,770               9,962,684               2,663,914               73%

  Development Services 530,319                   793,689                   263,370                   67%

  Public Facilities 168,328                   289,199                   120,871                   58%

  Parks 618,302                   899,338                   281,036                   69%

  Recreation 564,425                   1,004,431               440,006                   56%

  Special Public Safety (F116) 629,182                   857,845                   228,663                   73%

  Tourism (F120) 214,761                   354,808                   140,047                   61%

Total Expenditures 31,890,339$           424,055$     45,046,045$           13,155,706$           71%

Budgeted Revenue Over / (Under) Expenses (961,050)$               

Salaries and Benefits Only:

  Police 14,068,299             19,714,494             5,646,195               71%

  Fire 6,630,410               9,011,091               2,380,681               74%

  All Other General Fund (GF) 4,326,170               6,439,329               2,113,159               67%

Total Salaries and Benefits 25,024,879$           35,164,914$           10,140,035$           71%

Salaries and Benefits % of GF 78% 78%

CANNABIS - Fund 117

Revenues 812,828$                 -$                  1,070,000$             257,172$                 76%

Expenditures 198,103                   9,675            201,984                   3,881                       98%

Budgeted Revenue Over / (Under) Expenses 868,016$                 

Measure A - Fund 118

Revenues -$                             -$                  2,700,000$             2,700,000$             0%

Expenditures -                                -                    -                                -                                

Budgeted Revenue Over / (Under) Expenses 2,700,000$             

Page 1 of 2

JLand
Text Box
10A1



Finance Department
Updated to 4/22/2021

General Fund Overview FY 2020-2021

Through March 31, 2021

REVENUES

The year to date numbers for the General Fund show seven (7) months of sales tax revenue totaling $9.4

million (as sales tax lags about seven (7) weeks), CARES revenue of $3.4 million, TOT revenue of $817,000

through 12/31/2020, Business License revenue of $799,000, Garbage Collection Franchise revenue of

$1.27 million, and current secured property tax revenue of $2.9 million. Other General Fund revenues

lag slightly behind due to accruals at year end and timing of the payments. Of special note, following the

Council meeting adopting the FY 20/21 mid year adjustments, separate funds were established for

Cannabis (Fund 117) and Measure A (Fund 118) where $1.07 million (Cannabis) and $2.7 million (Measure

A) revenues have been budgeted. Cannabis revenues total $812,828 through 3/31/21 which is on target

with projections. Finance has no indication that the General Fund revenues, as budgeted, will not meet

expectations.

EXPENDITURES

The year to date expenditures are at 71% of the budget, which is reasonable based on the nine (9) month

mark. As salaries and benefits make up such a large portion of the General Fund, the detail is provided in

a separate section for review. These expenditures are at 71% for the nine (9) months ended 3/31/2021

with all departments trending at or slightly below the benchmark of 75%. Overtime related to COVID-19

is $785,000 through March 2021. Recreation expenditures are below the benchmark due to the County-

wide restrictions limiting the City's ability to provide many of our recreation programs. Legal/attorney

expenses detailed above are for fees paid through services rendered up to January 2021. Council recently

approved the use of General Fund Reserves to address the Unsheltered Homeless Encampment Crisis

(UHEC) the City is faced with. To date, minimal expenses have been posted to the general ledger for

UHEC, as invoices for materials and services are still being processed, as well as any staffing costs.

FINANCE UPDATE

The first nine (9) months of the fiscal year appear to be on target with the adopted budget for FY

2020/2021 with sales tax coming in slightly higher than originally anticipated. Currently, the largest

uncertainties surround the COVID-19 pandemic and its long-term implications for the City, especially as it

relates to Recreation. Staff adjusted revenues and expenses at the FY 2020/2021 mid year budget

process and feel confident about these adjustments. Staff will continue to monitor the City's finances

and provide updates to Council.

Page 2 of 2



Incident Summary 
Report

April 27, 2021

JLand
Text Box
10B1



Operations Highlights ……………………… Page 2

Incident Summary by Type..………………Page 3

Calls by District ………….………………….. Page 4

Fire Prevention Highlights ………….……. Page 5

Neighborhood Services Highlights ….....Page 6

Tab
le

 o
f C

o
n

te
n

ts

1



O
p

e
ratio

n
s H

igh
ligh

ts

2

Operations

Turlock Fire responded 682 emergency calls for service between March 

16, 2021 and April 16, 2021. This included seven structure fires, seven  

vehicle fires, 25 trash/grass fires, 25 injury vehicle collisions, and 12 

hazardous materials calls. 

The city experienced a number of significant building fires this month 

including two commercial structure fires that occurred on consecutive 

evenings.  In both cases arson is suspected and the fire marshal’s office 

has identified persons of interest.  One arrest has been made at this 

time.  The department is continuing to investigate.  

The new firefighter recruits completed their training academy and have 

been assigned to shifts.  They will now complete a one-year 

probationary period during which time they will be evaluated to ensure 

they meet all performance standards.  

The fire engineer academy has just completed its third and final week.  

An assessment test will be held on April 23rd to fill budgeted vacancies 

within the department.  

COVID19 related calls continue to decline in the department.  As the 

vaccine becomes more available we anticipate this to continue.  

Stanislaus County has remained in the red tier this month.  The governor 

has announced that all restrictions (minus the mask mandate) will be 

lifted on June 15th providing there is ample vaccinations and low 

hospitalization rates.   

Training

As the COVID restrictions are slowly lifted and as firefighters are 

vaccinated, more company training is being held.  This includes rescue, 

live fire, and EMS trainings.  The department is also focusing on the new 

firefighter training with will take place throughout the year.  

The department continues to work with our MCST partners on 

standardization of operating procedures and responses.  We are 

currently reviewing rapid intervention crew tactics, accountability and 

garage fire deployments.  



In
cid

e
n

t Su
m

m
ary B

y In
cid

e
n

t Typ
e

3

41

386

4

35
11

22

92

58

9
24

Fires   41 EMS    386

Rescue   4 MVA   35

Hazmat   11 Check Outs   22

Service Calls/Assists   92 Cancelled/Non-Emergency   58

Other   9 False Alarms   24



4

C
alls b

y C
o

u
n

cil D
istrict169

District 1

183
District 2

118
District 3

207
District 4

8
Other

3/16/2021 – 4/16/2021



5

Fire
 P

reve
n

tio
n

 H
igh

ligh
ts

This past week has been busy, Fire Prevention and Neighborhood 

Services have been assisting with the clean-up of locations within our 

community. Fire Prevention also investigated two large commercial 

structure fires which were suspicious in nature. 

18 Plan reviews for life safety 11 Residential solar inspections

8
Misc. inspections for projects with 

assistance
3 New underground fire supply systems flush test

18 Re-inspections for businesses 10 New business occupancy inspections

3
Fire alarm final testing and 

acceptance
3

State licensing day care or adult facilities fire 

clearances

4
Fire sprinkler system hydrostatic 

testing
1 Requested fire flows for new fire systems

6 Final inspections 11
Zoom Pre-development meetings for potential 

businesses

12 Miscellaneous meeting attended 2 Emergency radio communications testing



N
e

igh
b

o
rh

o
o

d
 Se

rvice
s H

igh
ligh

ts

6

Neighborhood Services Code Enforce Officers completed 203 various 

inspections from March 16, 2021 through April 19, 2021. These inspections 

included refuse, tall weeds, inoperable vehicles, graffiti, and vehicles 

parked on grass. Neighborhood Services Staff Services Assistant received 

497 phone calls, 188 emails and mailed 203 TMC violation letters. 

Neighborhood Services removed 337 abandoned shopping carts, abated 

graffiti from 147 locations and removed 337 illegal snipe signs (i.e. lost 

dogs, yard sales, and business promotions), none of which were offensive. 

Public and private, abandoned or inoperable vehicles, were addressed 

resulting in 216 cars orange-tagged or sent a letter to remove the vehicle.

A total of 10,540 pounds of debris and trash was taken to Scavenger, 

through the combined effort of Neighborhood Services personnel and City 

of Turlock staff.

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

8,000

4,600

68,520

6,360
6,100

Pounds of Refuse Taken to Scavenger by Month



T U R L O C K   P O L I  C E   D E P A R T M E N T  

STAFF UPDATE  
MARCH 2021  
P R E S E N T E D  T O  C O U N C I L :  A P R I L  2 7 ,  2 0 2 1  

T P D  T i p  L i n e     6 6 8 - 5 5 5 0  e x t .  6 7 8 0      T P D t i p l i n e @ t u r l o c k . c a . u s  

      DEPARTMENT STATISTICS  Current information as of 4/15/21  

MONTHLY TOP 5 CALLS  
FOR SERVICE  

Extra Patrol 653 

Traffic Stop 425 

Code 6 / Investigation 299 

Suspicious Person 160 

Security Check 138 

      SPECIAL NOTE  

The COVID-19 pandemic has greatly impacted the Turlock Police Department’s reductions shown in this report.  COVID-19 forced 

businesses to close and social gatherings to stop beginning in March 2020, resulting in reductions of monthly calls for service, 

police reports, officers’ self initiated activity, traffic collisions, arrests, crime rate, etc. 

      SOCIAL MEDIA:  

Facebook            
@TurlockPD  

Followers Likes 
+/- from 

Prev. 
Month 

15,957 15,058 +28 

Instagram 
@TurlockPolice  

Followers +/- from Prev. 
Month 

12.9k +100 

Twitter 
@TurlockPolice  

Followers +/-  from 
Prev. Month 

6,968 +1 

YouTube  

Followers +/- from Prev. 
Month 

172 +0 

NextDoor 

Members 
+/- from 

Prev. 
Month 

Neighbor-
hoods 

10,015 +83 64 

S TA F F I N G  

 
Population Authorized 

Sworn Staff 
Operational 
Sworn Staff  

Authorized Officers 
per Capita 

Mar. 2020 74,297 81 65 1.09 

Mar. 2021 74,297 82 69 1.10 

WARRANT ARREST, 64, 9%

AUTO THEFT, 55, 8%

LARCENY, 27, 4%

TRAFFIC STOP, 23, 3%

ASSAULT & BATTERY, 23, 3%

LARCENY FROM VEHICLE, 21, 3%

FOUND PROPERTY, 20, 3%

SICK PERSON - SUICIDE, 19, 3%

BURGLARY - AUTO, 18, 3%

TRAFFIC OFFENSE, 18, 3%

ALL OTHER 
REPORT 

CLASSIFICATIONS, 
407, 58%

POLICE REPORTS

3,082 

6,793 

3,905

973

695

257

0 2,000 4,000 6,000

9-1-1 Calls
Received

Non-Emergency
Calls Received

Calls for Service

Self Initiated Calls

Reports Taken

Arrests

SERVICE DEMANDS

JLand
Text Box
10C1



      PART ONE CRIMES (UCR)  YTD as of 4/21/2021 

2021 

JA
N

  

2021 YTD 

Crime Rate  

YTD 
2020 

YTD 
2021  

% Diff. ‘21 
vs ‘20 

FEB
 

M
A

R
 

A
P

R
 

M
A

Y 

JU
N

 

JU
L 

A
U

G
 

SEP
 

O
C

T 

N
O

V
 

D
EC

 

 5 Year 
Avg 

% Diff. 
2021 vs 5 

Yr Avg 

Homicide 0 0.00 1 0 -100% 0 0          0.6 -100% 

Forcible Rape 1 0.04 7 3 -57% 1 1          6.4 -53% 

Robbery 9 0.24 28 18 -36% 5 4          28 -36% 

Agg.  Assault 33 1.28 59 95 61% 22 40          62 45% 

Burglary 55 1.59 83 118 42% 32 31          113 5% 

Larceny 72 3.92 385 291 -24% 81 138          394 -26% 

Veh. Theft 39 1.87 102 139 36% 44 56          116.4 19% 

TOTAL 209 8.94 665 664 0% 185 270          723.6 -8% 

1

0 0

1

0

0.2

0.4 0.4 0.4

0.6

0

1

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Homicide

Homicides 5 Year Avg.

5

12

5

7

33.6

3.4 5.2

5.0

6.4

0

10

20

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Forcible Rape

Forcible Rape 5 Year Avg.

27

23

33 28

18

25.8

25.6

26.4 26.4

28.0

0

20

40

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Robbery

Robbery 5 Year Avg.

76

64
60 59

95
71.6

72 72 68

65

0

20

40

60

80

100

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Aggravated Assault

Agg. Assault 5 Year Average

119

91
118

83

118144.6

140
127 121

113

0

50

100

150

200

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Burglary

Burglary 5 Year Average

374 377 403
385

291

397.0 409.4 415.0 400.8 394.0

0

100

200

300

400

500

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Larceny - Theft

Larceny - Theft 5 Year Average

114

87
100 102

139
129.2 130.8

117.4 121.4

116.4

0

50

100

150

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Motor Vehicle Theft

Mtr Veh Theft 5 Year Average

716

654
719

665 664

772.0 
781.4 

763.2 742.8 723.6 

400

500

600

700

800

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Total Part One Crimes

TOTAL 5 Year Average



 Pedestrian 
Collisions 

Bicyclist 
Collisions Fatal Collisions Injury Collisions Non-Injury 

Collisions 
Private Prop. 

Collisions TOTAL ACC 

Mar. 2020 0 2 0 20 31 5 56 

Mar. 2021 2 1 2 41 8 * 51 

% Chg.  +100% -50% +100% 105% -74% * -9% 

2021 YTD 10 6 3 102 49 * 154 

5 Year Avg.  8.6 3.6 0.4 77.6 127.8 * 216.6 

% Chg. vs.  
5 Yr. Avg. +16% +67% +650% +31% -62% * -29% 

PCF’s listed of only 3 or more  

      TRAFFIC COLLISIONS:  

PRIMARY COLLISION FACTORS 

MAR. 2020 MAR. 2021 

Unsafe Lane Change 
(11) 

Failure to Yield 
Right of Way (10) 

Speeding (11) Speeding (6) 

DUI (3) Red Light Violation 
(5) 

Red Light Violation 
(3) 

Unsafe Lane Change 
(3) 

*Private Property Collisions are no longer a report classification (beginning in July 2020 – Current). Moving forward, this will phase out but the category will be kept 
on this report to show past years’ counts contributing towards each year’s totals. 

YTD as of 4/15/2021 

242

209 202 200

154

216.6
226.6 230.6 225.2

216.6

100

120

140

160

180

200

220

240

260

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Total Collision Reports

TOTAL COLLISION REPORTS 5 Year Avg.

0 0 0

1

3

0.8 0.6 0.4 0.2 0.4

0

1

2

3

4

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Fatal Collision Reports

FATAL COLLISION REPORTS

5 Year Average

94

71
77

90

102

58.8

69.4 72.6
74.2

78.6

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Injury Collision Reports

INJURY COLLISION REPORTS

5 Year Average

135 126 118 103

49

137.6 139.6 142.4 138.8
127.8

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Non-Injury Collision 

Reports

NON-INJURY COLLISION REPORTS

5 Year Average

5

4 3

13

8

4.4

4.6
4.2

3.8

6

0

5

10

15

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Peds

Pedestrians 5 Year Avg.

3

0 1

3

54.4

4

3.2

2
1.8

0

2

4

6

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Bicyclists

Bicyclists 5 Year Average


	Agenda
	3A
	6A
	6B
	6C
	6D
	6E
	6F
	6G
	6H
	6I
	6J
	6K
	9A
	9B
	9C
	9D
	10A1
	10B1
	10C1



